EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT



2006 - 2007



MINUTES

of the sitting of

Wednesday 11 October 2006

P6_PV(2006)10-11 PE 378.420

EN EN

KEYS TO SYMBOLS USED

* Consultation procedure

** I Cooperation procedure: first reading
** II Cooperation procedure: second reading

*** Assent procedure

***I Codecision procedure: first reading

***II Codecision procedure: second reading

Codecision procedure: third reading

(The type of procedure is determined by the legal basis proposed by the Commission)

INFORMATION RELATING TO VOTING TIME

Unless stated otherwise, the rapporteurs informed the Chair in writing, before the vote, of their position on the amendments.

ABBREVIATIONS USED FOR PARLIAMENTARY COMMITTEES

AFET Committee on Foreign Affairs
DEVE Committee on Development
INTA Committee on International Trade

BUDG Committee on Budgets

CONT Committee on Budgetary Control

ECON Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs EMPL Committee on Employment and Social Affairs

ENVI Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Food Safety

ITRE Committee on Industry, Research and Energy

IMCO Committee on the Internal Market and Consumer Protection

TRAN Committee on Transport and Tourism REGI Committee on Regional Development

AGRI Committee on Agriculture and Rural Development

PECH Committee on Fisheries

CULT Committee on Culture and Education

JURI Committee on Legal Affairs

LIBE Committee on Civil Liberties, Justice and Home Affairs

AFCO Committee on Constitutional Affairs

FEMM Committee on Women's Rights and Gender Equality

PETI Committee on Petitions

ABBREVIATIONS USED FOR POLITICAL GROUPS

PPE-DE Group of the European People's Party (Christian Democrats) and European Democrats

PSE Socialist Group in the European Parliament

ALDE Group of the Alliance of Liberals and Democrats for Europe

Verts/ALE Group of the Greens/European Free Alliance

GUE/NGL Confederal Group of the European United Left – Nordic Green Left

IND/DEM Independence and Democracy Group UEN Union for Europe of the Nations Group

NI Non-attached Members

Contents

1. Resumption of session	3
2. Tribute	3
3. Statement by the President	3
4. Approval of Minutes of previous sitting	3
5. Action taken on Parliament's resolutions	3
6. Documents received	4
7. Written declarations (Rule 116)	6
8. Texts of agreements forwarded by the Council	6
9. Membership of Parliament	6
10. Membership of committees and delegations.	6
11. Agenda	6
12. Future action in the field of patents (motions for resolutions tabled)	7
13. Nuclear test by the Democratic People's Republic of North Korea (debate)	7
14. Informal summit in Lahti and EU-Russia relations following the murder of journalist Anna Politkovskaya (debate)	8
15. Use of passenger data (PNR) (debate)	8
16. Footwear from China and Vietnam (debate)	8
17. European Agency for Reconstruction * (debate)	9
18. One-minute speeches on matters of political importance	9
19. The protection and welfare of animals 2006-2010 (debate)	9
20. Follow-up to the report on competition in professional services (debate)	10
21. EU economic and trade relations with Mercosur (debate)	10
22. Sector of soft fruits and cherries intended for processing (debate)	10
23. Agenda for next sitting	11
24. Closure of sitting	11

ATTENDANCE REGISTER	13	,

PE 378.420 - 2 **EN** P6_PV(2006)10-11

EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

2006 - 2007 SESSION

Sittings of 11 and 12 October 2006

BRUSSELS

MINUTES

IN THE CHAIR: Josep BORRELL FONTELLES
President

1. Resumption of session

The sitting opened at 15.00.

2. Tribute

On behalf of Parliament, the President paid tribute to the memory of Antoni Gutiérrez Díaz – a Member of the European Parliament between 1987 and 1999 and Vice-President between 1992 and 1994 – who had died on 6 October 2006.

Parliament observed a minute's silence.

3. Statement by the President

The President made a statement on the murder of the Russian journalist Anna Politkovskaya in Moscow on 7 October 2006. He pointed out that he had called on the Russian authorities to do everything within their power to find out who was responsible for the murder. He added that he had passed on Parliament's condolences to Mrs Politkovskaya's family and friends. Finally, the President pointed out that 63 journalists had been killed across the world since the beginning of the year and that 120 journalists were in prison.

Parliament observed a minute's silence.

4. Approval of Minutes of previous sitting

The Minutes of the previous sitting were approved.

000

The following spoke: Tunne Kelam, Daniel Cohn-Bendit and Gay Mitchell.

5. Action taken on Parliament's resolutions

The Commission communication on the action taken on the resolutions adopted by Parliament during the March I and II, April I and II, May I and II and June 2006 part-sessions had been distributed

The Commission communication on the action taken on the positions and resolutions adopted by Parliament during the July 2006 part-session had also been distributed.

6. Documents received

The following documents had been received:

- 1) from committees
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the agreement between the European Community and the Government of the Republic of Bulgaria on the participation of Bulgaria in the work of the European Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction (COM (2006)0255 C6-0322/2006 2006/0095(CNS)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Jean-Marie Cavada (A6-0328/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the agreement between the European Community and the Republic of Turkey on the participation of Turkey in the work of the European Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction (COM(2006)0257 C6-0320/2006 2006/0089(CNS)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Jean-Marie Cavada (A6-0327/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the agreement between the European Community and Romania on the participation of Romania in the work of the European Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction (COM(2006)0256 C6-0321/2006 2006/0087 (CNS)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Jean-Marie Cavada (A6-0326/2006)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the term of protection of copyright and certain related rights (Codified version) (COM(2006)0219 C6-0160/2006 2006/0071(COD)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0323/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council directive on control of San José Scale (Codified version) (COM(2006)0123 C6-0136/2006 2006/0040(CNS)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0322/2006)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on rental right and lending right and on certain rights related to copyright in the field of intellectual property (Codified version) (COM(2006)0226 C6-0162/2006 2006/0073(COD)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0321/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation on glucose and lactose (Codified version) (COM (2006)0116 C6-0135/2006 2006/0038(CNS)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0320/2006)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council concerning misleading and comparative advertising (Codified version) (COM(2006)0222 C6-0161/2006 2006/0070(COD)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0318/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation amending Regulation (EC) No 1321/2004 on the establishment of structures for the management of the European satellite radio-navigation programmes (COM(2006)0261 C6-0201/2006 2006/0090(CNS)) ITRE Committee Rapporteur: Giles Chichester (A6-0314/2006)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the quality required of shellfish waters (Codified version) (COM(2006)0205 C6-0152/2006 2006/0067(COD)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Diana Wallis (A6-0313/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation introducing, on the occasion of the accession of Bulgaria and Romania, special temporary measures for recruitment of officials of the European Communities (COM(2006)0271 C6-0221/2006 2006/0091(CNS)) JURI Committee Rapporteur: Giuseppe Gargani (A6-0312/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation establishing a European Union Agency for

Fundamental Rights (COM(2005)0280 [[01]] - C6-0288/2005 - 2005/0124(CNS)) - LIBE Committee - Rapporteur: Kinga Gál (A6-0306/2006)

- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation (Euratom) laying down the rules for the participation of undertakings, research centres and universities in actions under the Seventh Framework Programme of the European Atomic Energy Community and for the dissemination of research results (2007-2011) (COM(2006)0042 C6-0080/2006 2006/0014(CNS)) ITRE Committee Rapporteur: Anne Laperrouze (A6-0305/2006)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the rules for the participation of undertakings, research centres and universities in actions under the Seventh Framework Programme and for the dissemination of research results (2007-2013) (COM(2005)0705 C6-0005/2006 2005/0277(COD)) ITRE Committee Rapporteur: Philippe Busquin (A6-0304/2006)
- Report on economic and trade relations between the EU and Mercosur with a view to the conclusion of an Interregional Association Agreement (2006/2035(INI)) INTA Committee Rapporteur: Daniel Varela Suanzes-Carpegna (A6-0302/2006)
- Report on the promotion of inland waterway transport 'NAIADES': An integrated European Action Programme for inland waterway transport (2006/2085(INI)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Corien Wortmann-Kool (A6-0299/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement between the European Community and the Republic of Maldives on certain aspects of air services (COM(2006) 0095 C6-0250/2006 2006/0027(CNS)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Paolo Costa (A6-0297/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement between the European Community and the Oriental Republic of Uruguay on certain aspects of air services (COM(2006)0064 C6-0249/2006 2006/0016(CNS)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Paolo Costa (A6-0296/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement between the European Community and the Government of the Republic of Singapore on certain aspects of air services (COM(2005)0513 C6-0165/2006 2005/0208(CNS)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Paolo Costa (A6-0295/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement between the European Community and New Zealand on certain aspects of air services (COM(2005)0267 C6-0226/2005 2005/0113(CNS)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Paolo Costa (A6-0294/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement between the European Community and the Government of Australia on certain aspects of air services (COM (2005)0264 C6-0224/2005 2005/0112(CNS)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Paolo Costa (A6-0293/2006)
- *** Recommendation on the draft Council decision on the accession of the Community to United Nations Economic Commission for Europe Regulation No 107 on provisions concerning the approval of category M2 or M3 vehicles with regard to their general construction (07884/1/2006 C6-0198/2006 2005/0250(AVC)) INTA Committee Rapporteur: Enrique Barón Crespo (A6-0292/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision providing exceptional Community assistance to Kosovo (COM(2006)0207 C6-0171/2006 2006/0068(CNS)) INTA Committee Rapporteur: Erika Mann (A6-0291/2006)
- Report on a Community Action Plan on the Protection and Welfare of Animals 2006-2010 (2006/2046(INI)) AGRI Committee Rapporteur: Elisabeth Jeggle (A6-0290/2006)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council decision establishing a Community civil protection

mechanism (recast) (COM(2006)0029 - C6-0076/2006 - 2006/0009(CNS)) - ENVI Committee - Rapporteur: Dimitrios Papadimoulis (A6-0286/2006)

- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation amending Regulation (EC) No 2667/2000 on the European Agency for Reconstruction (COM(2006)0162 C6-0170/2006 2006/0057(CNS)) AFET Committee Rapporteur: Jelko Kacin (A6-0285/2006)
- * Report on the initiative by the Republic of Austria with a view to the adoption of a Council Act amending Europol's Staff Regulations (05428/2006 C6-0073/2006 2006/0804(CNS)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Claude Moraes (A6-0279/2006)
- * Report on the initiative by the Republic of Austria for adoption of a Council decision adjusting the basic salaries and allowances applicable to Europol staff (05417/2006 C6-0072/2006 2006/0803(CNS)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Claude Moraes (A6-0278/2006)
- 2) from Members
- 2.1) oral questions (Rule 108)
- Oral question (O-0098/2006) by Jan Andersson and Karin Jöns, on behalf of the EMPL Committee, to the Commission: Reintegration of breast cancer patients into the job market and use of social funds for continued training of health professionals in the field of breast cancer (B6-0433/2006)
- Oral question (O-0101/2006) by Karl-Heinz Florenz and Karin Jöns, on behalf of the ENVI Committee to the Commission: Early detection and treatment of breast cancer in the enlarged European Union (B6-0434/2006)
- Oral question (O-0085/2006) by Joseph Daul and Janusz Wojciechowski, on behalf of the AGRI Committee, to the Commission: Situation of the sector of soft fruits and cherries intended for processing (B6-0435/2006)
- 2.2) written declarations for entry in the Register (Rule 116)
- Aldo Patriciello, on abolishing admission quotas at universities (0069/2006)
- Alessandra Mussolini and Carlo Casini, on the execution of three Catholics in Indonesia (0070/2006)
- Luca Romagnoli, on the censure and threats against His Holiness Pope Benedict XVI and explicit attempts, not excluding the use of violence, to violate freedom of thought and expression in the European Union (0071/2006)
- Kinga Gál, Barbara Kudrycka, Zita Pleštinská and Peter Šťastný, on the possible postponement of the incorporation of the new Member States into the Schengen area (0072/2006)

7. Written declarations (Rule 116)

In accordance with Rule 116(5), written declarations 42, 43, 44, 45, 46/2006 lapsed as they had not obtained the required number of signatures.

8. Texts of agreements forwarded by the Council

The Council had forwarded certified true copies of the following:

- Cooperation agreement on a Civil Global Navigation Satellite System (GNSS) between the European Community and its Member States, of the one part, and the Republic of Korea, of the other part
- Agreement between the European Community and the Republic of Maldives on certain aspects of air services

9. Membership of Parliament

Cecilia Malmström had given notice of her appointment as Minister for European Affairs in the Swedish Government, with effect from 06.10.2006.

Since, pursuant to Article 7(1) of the Act concerning the election of representatives of the European Parliament by direct universal suffrage, this office was incompatible with that of Member of the European Parliament, Parliament established under Rule 4(4) of its Rules of Procedure that the vacancy would take effect from 06.10.2006 and informed the Member State concerned thereof.

The Estonian authorities had given notice of the appointment of Katrin Saks to replace Toomas Hendrik Ilves as Member of Parliament with effect from 09.10.2006.

Parliament noted the appointment under Rule 4(1).

The President reminded the House of the provisions of Rule 3(5).

Observers

On 10.10.2006, Monica Octavia Muscă had tendered her resignation as an Observer at the European Parliament appointed by the Romanian Chamber of Deputies.

In accordance with the rules laid down by the Bureau, Parliament would inform the Romanian authorities thereof.

10. Membership of committees and delegations

At the request of the GUE/NGL Group and the non-attached Members, Parliament ratified the following appointments:

ENVI Committee: Jens Holm

Temporary Committee on the alleged use of European countries by the CIA for the transport and illegal detention of prisoners: Luca Romagnoli to replace Gianni De Michelis

11. Agenda

The order of business had been established (*Minutes of 25.09.2006, Item 11*) and a corrigendum to the agenda had been distributed (PE 378.364/OJ/COR).

The following spoke: Hannes Swoboda, on behalf of the PSE Group, who expressed his disappointment at the fact that the Council could not be present for long, which had meant the postponement of several items on the agenda. He then called for the Council to be asked to step up its attendance in the House.

Proposed changes to the agenda:

- request from the Verts/ALE Group to:
- 1. change the title of Item 48 on the agenda to: 'Council and Commission statements on the informal summit in Lahti and EU-Russia relations following the murder of journalist Anna Politkovskaya'
- 2. wind up the debate with motions for resolution

The following spoke: Hannes Swoboda, on behalf of the PSE Group, who asked that the House be able to vote on the two parts of the request separately.

Parliament agreed to the first part of the request.

The following spoke: Daniel Cohn-Bendit, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Reinhard Rack, Hans-Gert Poettering, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, who proposed that the vote on the motions for resolution be taken during the following part-session, Tunne Kelam and Jacek Emil Saryusz-

Wolski, who requested that the House vote on the second part of the request (the President replied that he had not noticed any objections from the House to Hans-Gert Poettering's request).

The agenda was thus established.

12. Future action in the field of patents (motions for resolutions tabled)

The debate had been held on 28.09.2006 (Minutes of 28.09.2006, Item 13).

Motions for resolutions to wind up the debate tabled pursuant to Rule 103(2):

- Maria Berger, Michel Rocard, on behalf of the PSE Group, Eva Lichtenberger, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Daniel Strož, Umberto Guidoni, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, and Francesco Enrico Speroni, on the future of European patent policy (B6-0521/2006)
- Klaus-Heiner Lehne, Giuseppe Gargani, Nicole Fontaine, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, Maria Berger, Michel Rocard, on behalf of the PSE Group, Sharon Bowles and Toine Manders, on behalf of the ALDE Group, on future patent policy in Europe (B6-0522/2006)
- Thomas Wise, on behalf of the IND/DEM Group, on future European patent policy (B6-0523/2006)
- Brian Crowley, on behalf of the UEN Group, on the future of EU patent policy (B6-0524/2006)

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.24.

13. Nuclear test by the Democratic People's Republic of North Korea (debate)

Statements by the High Representative for the Common Foreign and Security Policy and the Commission: Nuclear test by the Democratic People's Republic of North Korea

Javier Solana (High Representative) and Benita Ferrero-Waldner (Member of the Commission) made the statements.

The following spoke: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, Martin Schulz, on behalf of the PSE Group, István Szent-Iványi, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Gérard Onesta, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Tobias Pflüger, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Girts Valdis Kristovskis, on behalf of the UEN Group, Bastiaan Belder, on behalf of the IND/DEM Group, Jan Tadeusz Masiel, Non-attached Member, Elmar Brok, Pasqualina Napoletano, Rebecca Harms, James Hugh Allister, Hubert Pirker, Marios Matsakis, to make a point of order (the President cut him off, as his remarks did not constitute a point of order), Benita Ferrero-Waldner, Javier Solana, Tobias Pflüger, who made a personal statement in response to remarks made by Elmar Brok, and Elmar Brok, on Tobias Pflüger's remarks.

The debate closed.

14. Informal summit in Lahti and EU-Russia relations following the murder of journalist Anna Politkovskaya (debate)

Council and Commission statements: Informal summit in Lahti and EU-Russia relations following the murder of journalist Anna Politkovskaya

Paula Lehtomäki (President-in-Office of the Council) and José Manuel Barroso (President of the Commission) made the statements.

The following spoke: Françoise Grossetête, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group.

IN THE CHAIR: Dagmar ROTH-BEHRENDT Vice-President

The following spoke: Martin Schulz, on behalf of the PSE Group, Graham Watson, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Daniel Cohn-Bendit, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Esko Seppänen, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Brian Crowley, on behalf of the UEN Group, Jens-Peter Bonde, on behalf of the IND/DEM Group, Koenraad Dillen, Non-attached Member, Tunne Kelam, Hannes Swoboda, Hélène Flautre, Mirosław Mariusz Piotrowski, Eija-Riitta Korhola, Reino Paasilinna, Satu Hassi, Nils Lundgren, Struan Stevenson, Martine Roure, Nigel Farage, Bogdan Klich and Edite Estrela.

IN THE CHAIR: Miroslav OUZKÝ Vice-President

The following spoke: Gunnar Hökmark, Józef Pinior, Othmar Karas, Malcolm Harbour, Jerzy Buzek, Andreas Schwab, Vytautas Landsbergis, Bogusław Sonik, Simon Busuttil, Alexander Stubb, Paula Lehtomäki and José Manuel Barroso.

The debate closed.

15. Use of passenger data (PNR) (debate)

Council and Commission statements: Use of passenger data (PNR)

Paula Lehtomäki (President-in-Office of the Council) and Franco Frattini (Vice-President of the Commission) made the statements.

The following spoke: Ewa Klamt, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, and Martine Roure, on behalf of the PSE Group.

IN THE CHAIR: Edward McMILLAN-SCOTT Vice-President

The following spoke: Sophia in 't Veld, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Johannes Voggenhuber, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Sylvia-Yvonne Kaufmann, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Brian Crowley, on behalf of the UEN Group, Ioannis Varvitsiotis, Stavros Lambrinidis, Jean-Marie Cavada, Giusto Catania, Michael Cashman, Alexander Alvaro, Sarah Ludford and Franco Frattini.

The debate closed.

16. Footwear from China and Vietnam (debate)

Oral question (O-0096/2006) by Enrique Barón Crespo, on behalf of the INTA Committee, to the Commission: The definitive results of the anti-dumping investigation concerning footwear from China and Vietnam (B6-0432/2006)

Olli Rehn (Member of the Commission) answered the question.

Enrique Barón Crespo moved the oral question and expressed his disappointment that both the Council and the Commissioner responsible for the matter in question were absent.

The following spoke: Georgios Papastamkos, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, David Martin, on behalf of the PSE Group, Sajjad Karim, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Margrete Auken, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Pedro Guerreiro, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Zbigniew Krzysztof Kuźmiuk, on behalf of the UEN Group, Jana Bobošíková, Non-attached Member, José Albino Silva Peneda, Kader Arif, Danutė Budreikaitė, Leopold Józef Rutowicz, Christofer Fjellner, Francisco Assis, Anne E. Jensen, Luca Romagnoli, Zuzana Roithová, Giulietto Chiesa, Antonio López-Istúriz White, Panagiotis Beglitis, Béla Glattfelder, Margrietus van den Berg, Syed Kamall, Olli Rehn and Enrique Barón Crespo, who requested that the Presidency and the Conference of Presidents look into the matter of attendance by the Council and Commission at debates in the House (the President noted his remarks).

The debate closed.

17. European Agency for Reconstruction * (debate)

Report on the proposal for a Council regulation amending Regulation (EC) No 2667/2000 on the European Agency for Reconstruction [COM(2006)0162 - C6-0170/2006 - 2006/0057(CNS)] - Committee on Foreign Affairs. Rapporteur: Jelko Kacin (A6-0285/2006).

Olli Rehn (Member of the Commission) spoke.

Jelko Kacin introduced the report.

The following spoke: Paulo Casaca (draftsman of the opinion of the CONT Committee), Hannes Swoboda, on behalf of the PSE Group, Erik Meijer, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Panagiotis Beglitis, Józef Pinior, Justas Vincas Paleckis and Olli Rehn.

The debate closed.

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.21.

(The sitting was suspended at 20.50 and resumed at 21.05.)

IN THE CHAIR: Josep BORRELL FONTELLES
President

18. One-minute speeches on matters of political importance

Pursuant to Rule 144, the following Members who wished to draw the attention of Parliament to matters of political importance spoke for one minute:

Czesław Adam Siekierski, Mario Borghezio, Katalin Lévai, Marco Pannella, Kartika Tamara Liotard, Kinga Gál, Antonio De Blasio, Gyula Hegyi, Marios Matsakis, Bogusław Rogalski, Marie Anne Isler Béguin, Carlo Fatuzzo, Toomas Savi, Leopold Józef Rutowicz, Danutė Budreikaitė, Laima Liucija Andrikienė, Lidia Joanna Geringer de Oedenberg, Andrzej Tomasz Zapałowski, Oldřich Vlasák, Marco Cappato, Nils Lundgren, Árpád Duka-Zólyomi, Marian Harkin, Pedro Guerreiro, Milan Gal'a, Gerard Batten and Witold Tomczak.

IN THE CHAIR: Luigi COCILOVO Vice-President

19. The protection and welfare of animals 2006-2010 (debate)

Report on a Community Action Plan on the Protection and Welfare of Animals 2006-2010 [2006/2046(INI)] - Committee on Agriculture and Rural Development. Rapporteur: Elisabeth Jeggle (A6-0290/2006)

Elisabeth Jeggle introduced the report.

Neelie Kroes (Member of the Commission) spoke.

The following spoke: Jens HolmHolm (draftsman of the opinion of the ENVI Committee), Agnes Schierhuber, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, Marc Tarabella, on behalf of the PSE Group, Karin Resetarits, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Friedrich-Wilhelm Graefe zu Baringdorf, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Kartika Tamara Liotard, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Janusz Wojciechowski, on behalf of the UEN Group, Andrzej Tomasz Zapałowski, on behalf of the IND/DEM Group, Andreas Mölzer, Non-attached Member, Pilar Ayuso, Rosa Miguélez Ramos, Mojca Drčar Murko, David Hammerstein Mintz, Jeffrey Titford, Albert Jan Maat, Wiesław Stefan Kuc and Carl Schlyter.

IN THE CHAIR: Mario MAURO Vice-President

The following spoke: Neil Parish, Ioannis Gklavakis, Esther Herranz García, Christa Klaß and Neelie Kroes.

The debate closed.

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.25.

20. Follow-up to the report on competition in professional services (debate)

Report on follow-up to the report on Competition in Professional Services [2006/2137(INI)] - Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs. Rapporteur: Jan Christian Ehler (A6-0272/2006)

Jan Christian Ehler introduced the report.

Neelie Kroes (Member of the Commission) spoke.

The following spoke: Donata Gottardi, on behalf of the PSE Group, Alfonso Andria, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Johannes Blokland, on behalf of the IND/DEM Group, Andreas Mölzer, Nonattached Member, and Neelie Kroes.

The debate closed.

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.26.

21. EU economic and trade relations with Mercosur (debate)

Report on economic and trade relations between the EU and Mercosur with a view to the conclusion of an Interregional Association Agreement (2006/2035(INI)) - Committee on International Trade. Rapporteur: Daniel Varela Suanzes-Carpegna (A6-0302/2006)

Daniel Varela Suanzes-Carpegna introduced the report.

Neelie Kroes (Member of the Commission) spoke.

The following spoke: Filip Kaczmarek (draftsman of the opinion of the DEVE Committee), José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra, on behalf of the PPE-DE Group, Javier Moreno Sánchez, on behalf of the PSE Group, Helmuth Markov, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Kader Arif, Antolín Sánchez Presedo and Neelie Kroes.

The debate closed.

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.27.

22. Sector of soft fruits and cherries intended for processing (debate)

Oral question (O-0085/2006) by Joseph Daul and Janusz Wojciechowski, on behalf of the AGRI Committee, to the Commission: Situation of the sector of soft fruits and cherries intended for processing (B6-0435/2006)

Czesław Adam Siekierski, deputising for the author, moved the oral question.

Neelie Kroes (Member of the Commission) answered the oral question.

The following spoke: Csaba Sándor Tabajdi, on behalf of the PSE Group, Janusz Wojciechowski, on behalf of the UEN Group, Zdzisław Zbigniew Podkański, Zbigniew Krzysztof Kuźmiuk and Neelie Kroes.

Motion for a resolution to wind up the debate tabled pursuant to Rule 108(5):

- Joseph Daul, on behalf of the AGRI Committee, on the situation with regard to soft fruits and cherries intended for processing (B6-0525/2006)

The debate closed.

Vote: Minutes of 12.10.2006, Item 7.28.

23. Agenda for next sitting

The agenda for the next sitting had been established ('Agenda' PE 378.364/OJJE).

24. Closure of sitting

The sitting closed at 23.50.

Julian Priestley Secretary-General Alejo Vidal-Quadras Vice-President

ATTENDANCE REGISTER

11.10.2006

The following signed:

Adamou, Allister, Alvaro, Andersson, Andrejevs, Andria, Andrikienė, Angelilli, Antoniozzi, Arif, Ashworth, Assis, Atkins, Attard-Montalto, Aubert, Audy, Auken, Ayala Sender, Aylward, Ayuso, Bachelot-Narquin, Baco, Badia I Cutchet, Barón Crespo, Barsi-Pataky, Batten, Battilocchio, Batzeli, Bauer, Beaupuy, Beazley, Becsey, Beglitis, Belder, Belet, Belohorská, Bennahmias, Beňová, Berend, Berès, van den Berg, Berger, Berlato, Berlinguer, Berman, Birutis, Blokland, Bloom, Bobošíková, Böge, Bösch, Bonde, Bono, Bonsignore, Booth, Borghezio, Borrell Fontelles, Bourzai, Bowis, Bowles, Bradbourn, Braghetto, Brejc, Brepoels, Březina, Brie, Brok, Budreikaitė, van den Burg, Bushill-Matthews, Busk, Busuttil, Cabrnoch, Calabuig Rull, Callanan, Camre, Capoulas Santos, Cappato, Carlotti, Carlshamre, Carnero González, Carollo, Casa, Casaca, Cashman, Casini, Caspary, Castiglione, Catania, Cavada, Cercas, Chatzimarkakis, Chichester, Chiesa, Chmielewski, Christensen, Chruszcz, Claevs, Clark, Cocilovo, Coelho, Cohn-Bendit, Corbett, Cornillet, Correia, Costa, Cottigny, Coûteaux, Cramer, Crowley, Marek Aleksander Czarnecki, Daul, Davies, De Blasio, Degutis, Dehaene, De Keyser, Demetriou, De Michelis, Deprez, De Rossa, De Sarnez, Descamps, Désir, Deß, Deva, De Veyrac, Díaz de Mera García Consuegra, Dičkutė, Didžiokas, Díez González, Dillen, Dimitrakopoulos, Dobolyi, Doorn, Douay, Dover, Doyle, Drčar Murko, Duchoň, Dührkop, Duff, Duka-Zólyomi, El Khadraoui, Elles, Esteves, Estrela, Ettl, Eurlings, Jill Evans, Robert Evans, Fajmon, Falbr, Farage, Fatuzzo, Fava, Fazakas, Ferber, Fernandes, Fernández Martín, Anne Ferreira, Elisa Ferreira, Figueiredo, Fjellner, Flasarová, Flautre, Foglietta, Fontaine, Fourtou, Fraga Estévez, Frassoni, Freitas, Friedrich, Gahler, Gál, Gal'a, Galeote, García-Margallo y Marfil, García Pérez, Garriga Polledo, Gaubert, Gauzès, Gebhardt, Gentvilas, Geremek, Geringer de Oedenberg, Gibault, Gierek, Giertych, Gill, Gklavakis, Glante, Glattfelder, Goebbels, Golik, Gollnisch, Gomes, Gomolka, Gottardi, Goudin, Grabowska, Grabowski, Graefe zu Baringdorf, de Grandes Pascual, Grech, Gröner, de Groen-Kouwenhoven, Groote, Grosch, Grossetête, Gruber, Guerreiro, Gurmai, Gutiérrez-Cortines, Guy-Quint, Gyürk, Hänsch, Handzlik, Hannan, Harangozó, Harbour, Harkin, Harms, Hasse Ferreira, Hassi, Hatzidakis, Haug, Hazan, Hedh, Hedkvist Petersen, Hegyi, Helmer, Henin, Hennicot-Schoepges, Herczog, Herranz García, Herrero-Teiedor, Hieronymi, Higgins, Hökmark, Holm, Honeyball, Hoppenstedt, Horáček, Howitt, Hudacký, Hughes, Hutchinson, Ibrisagic, in 't Veld, Isler Béguin, Itälä, Iturgaiz Angulo, Jackson, Jäätteenmäki, Jałowiecki, Janowski, Járóka, Jarzembowski, Jeggle, Jensen, Joan i Marí, Jöns, Jordan Cizelj, Juknevičienė, Kacin, Kaczmarek, Kallenbach, Kamall, Kamiński, Karas, Karim, Kasoulides, Kaufmann, Kauppi, Tunne Kelam, Kilroy-Silk, Kindermann, Klamt, Klaß, Klich, Klinz, Knapman, Koch, Koch-Mehrin, Kohlíček, Konrad, Kósáné Kovács, Koterec, Kozlík, Krahmer, Krarup, Krasts, Kratsa-Tsagaropoulou, Krehl, Kreissl-Dörfler, Kristovskis, Krupa, Kuc, Kudrycka, Kuhne, Kułakowski, Kušķis, Kusstatscher, Kuźmiuk, Lagendijk, Laignel, Lamassoure, Lambert, Lambrinidis, Landsbergis, Lang, Langen, Langendries, Laperrouze, La Russa, Lauk, Lavarra, Lax, Le Foll, Lehideux, Lehne, Leichtfried, Leinen, Jean-Marie Le Pen, Le Rachinel, Lewandowski, Liberadzki, Libicki, Lienemann, Liese, Liotard, Lombardo, López-Istúriz White, Louis, Lucas, Ludford, Lulling, Lundgren, Lynne, Maat, Maaten, McAvan, McCarthy, McGuinness, McMillan-Scott, Madeira, Maldeikis, Manders, Maňka, Erika Mann, Thomas Mann, Mantovani, Markov, Marques, David Martin, Hans-Peter Martin, Martinez, Martinez, Martinez, Masiel,

Maštálka, Mastenbroek, Mato Adrover, Matsakis, Matsis, Matsouka, Mauro, Mavrommatis, Mayer, Mayor Oreja, Medina Ortega, Meijer, Méndez de Vigo, Meyer Pleite, Miguélez Ramos, Mikko, Mikolášik, Millán Mon, Mitchell, Mölzer, Mohácsi, Montoro Romero, Moraes, Moreno Sánchez, Morgan, Morgantini, Mote, Mulder, Musacchio, Muscat, Musotto, Musumeci, Myller, Napoletano, Nassauer, Newton Dunn, Nicholson of Winterbourne, van Nistelrooij, Novak, Obiols i Germà, Achille Occhetto, Öger, Olajos, Ó Neachtain, Onesta, Onyszkiewicz, Oomen-Ruijten, Ortuondo Larrea, Őry, Ouzký, Oviir, Paasilinna, Pack, Pafilis, Pahor, Paleckis, Panayotopoulos-Cassiotou, Pannella, Panzeri, Papastamkos, Parish, Patrie, Pek, Pflüger, Piecyk, Pīks, Pinheiro, Pinior, Piotrowski, Pirker, Piskorski, Pistelli, Pittella, Pleguezuelos Aguilar, Pleštinská, Podestà, Podkański, Poettering, Poignant, Pomés Ruiz, Portas, Prets, Prodi, Protasiewicz, Purvis, Queiró, Quisthoudt-Rowohl, Rack, Radwan, Ransdorf, Rapkay, Rasmussen, Remek, Resetarits, Reul, Reynaud, Riera Madurell, Ries, Riis-Jørgensen, Rivera, Rocard, Rogalski, Roithová, Romagnoli, Romeva i Rueda, Rosati, Roszkowski, Roth-Behrendt, Rothe, Rouček, Roure, Rudi Ubeda, Rübig, Rutowicz, Ryan, Sacconi, Saïfi, Sakalas, Saks, Salinas García, Salvini, Sánchez Presedo, dos Santos, Sartori, Saryusz-Wolski, Savary, Savi, Sbarbati, Schapira, Scheele, Schenardi, Schierhuber, Schlyter, Frithjof Schmidt, Schnellhardt, Schöpflin, Schröder, Schroedter, Schulz, Schuth, Schwab, Seeber, Seeberg, Segelström, Seppänen, Siekierski, Silva Peneda, Simpson, Sinnott, Skinner, Škottová, Sommer, Sornosa Martínez, Sousa Pinto, Spautz, Speroni, Staes, Staniszewska, Starkevičiūtė, Šťastný, Sterckx, Stevenson, Stihler, Stockmann, Strejček, Strož, Stubb, Sturdy, Sudre, Sumberg, Surján, Susta, Svensson, Swoboda, Szájer, Szejna, Szent-Iványi, Szymański, Tabajdi, Tajani, Takkula, Tannock, Tarabella, Tarand, Tatarella, Thomsen, Titford, Titley, Toia, Tomczak, Trautmann, Triantaphyllides, Trüpel, Turmes, Tzampazi, Uca, Ulmer, Väyrynen, Vakalis, Valenciano Martínez-Orozco, Vanhecke, Van Hecke, Van Lancker, Van Orden, Varela Suanzes-Carpegna, Varvitsiotis, Vatanen, Vaugrenard, Veneto, Vergnaud, Vernola, Vincenzi, Virrankoski, Vlasák, Vlasto, Voggenhuber, Wagenknecht, Wallis, Walter, Watson, Henri Weber, Manfred Weber, Weiler, Westlund, Whittaker, Wieland, Wiersma, Wijkman, Willmott, Wise, von Wogau, Wohlin, Bernard Piotr Wojciechowski, Janusz Wojciechowski, Wortmann-Kool, Wurtz, Yañez-Barnuevo García, Záborská, Zahradil, Zaleski, Zapałowski, Zappalà, Zatloukal, Ždanoka, Železný, Zieleniec, Zimmer, Zingaretti, Zvěřina, Zwiefka

Observers

Abadjiev Dimitar, Ali Nedzhmi, Anastase Roberta Alma, Arabadjiev Alexander, Bărbulețiu Tiberiu, Bliznashki Georgi, Buruiană Aprodu Daniela, Christova Christina Velcheva, Ciornei Silvia, Cioroianu Adrian Mihai, Corlățean Titus, Coșea Dumitru Gheorghe Mircea, Crețu Corina, Crețu Gabriela, Duca Viorel, Hogea Vlad Gabriel, Husmenova Filiz, Iacob Ridzi Monica Maria, Ilchev Stanimir, Kazak Tchetin, Kirilov Evgeni, Kónya-Hamar Sándor, Marinescu Marian-Jean, Mihăescu Eugen, Mihalache Dan, Morțun Alexandru Ioan, Paparizov Atanas Atanassov, Pașcu Ioan Mircea, Petre Maria, Podgorean Radu, Popa Nicolae Vlad, Popeangă Petre, Sârbu Daciana Octavia, Severin Adrian, Shouleva Lydia, Silaghi Ovidiu Ioan, Sofianski Stefan, Szabó Károly Ferenc, Țicău Silvia Adriana, Tîrle Radu, Vigenin Kristian